SKAGGS – VA. to KY. RESEARCH
(My Personal notes – Carol Sutherland)
Revised:  Jan. 23, 2006

James Skaggs, one of the earliest residents on Meadow Creek (Virginia), first appearing in 1749 serving as an appraiser of John Elswick’s estate; had land surveys as early as 1751 in Virginia.    (See Land Records)

In 1776 the Committee for Safety for Fincastle County, Va. recorded that Capt. James Skaggs was unable to serve any longer because of his infirm state of health.


In 1784, Montgomery County, Va. Survey Book B, p. 114 – Commissioner’s Certificate for 150 acres surveyed for Rachel Skaggs.  .

 Possibly between 1776 and 1784, James Skaggs, Senior died.  No will was left or has been found.  


The following are the children of James Skaggs and Rachel Moredock (not confirmed as her last name, but in later generations Moredock was used as a middle name).   Documentation to support this is the Moses Skaggs’ Estate Papers filed in 1836 in Green County, KY, listing his brothers and sisters.  Also have a copy of Archibald Thompson’s diary (Henry and Charles Skaggs married sisters of Archibald Thompson) in which he lists the births of most of the children of Henry & Charles – dates in the diary are designated by **.

1.
Jacob

b. 1722; d. before 1836

m. Mary Francis Samples



One (1) son only – William – verified by his mother in the Moses



Skaggs papers.



1.
William  b. C1778

m. Margaret Hoover 4/27/1803





d.  c. 1850

m. Jane Nichols 7/17/1841

2.
Henry

b. 1/8/1724; d. 1810

m. Mary Thompson * b. 3/18/1739**

1.
John Thompson  b.** 12/4-5/1760; d. 1780 while on a hunt with his 






father.  Died before will written

2.
Lucy
    b. **12/5/1762
m. **John Stacy

5/9/1782


3.
Solomon   b.**1/30/1766
m. Rhoda ?


4.
David
    b.**4/28/1767

m. Margaret Cannon  


5.
Sylvia
    b.**2/18/1769

m. Reuben Roark
3/1/1786


6.
Mary Polly b. **12/19/1771 
m. William Combs
               +
7.
Nancy       b.  c. 1770

m. Peter DeSpain
12/15/1791



8.
Rachel      b.  c. 1774

m. Thomas Ray

1/29/1794


9.
Sarah
    b.  c. 1774

m.  



10.
Stephen    b.  c. 1774

m.



11.
James       b.  c. 1774

m.  Anna McColgan
1/21/1795

NOTE:  + Nancy required consent to marry, therefore, assuming she was under 21 at time of her marriage to Peter DeSpain, means she would have been born after 1770.  Married by Josiah Dodge, surety by Berry Belcher (Note: Peter’s brother-in-law), consent by Henry Skaggs, witnessed by James Skaggs.
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See Land records
Henry listed in 1782 as a resident of Montgomery County, Va., serving as an appraiser on the estate of Anthony Payte.

In 1784 Henry’s mother, Rachel, assigned him 150 acres (Mtg. Cty. Survey Book B, p. 114).

Henry is listed on the Russell County, Va. Personal Property Tax Lists for the years 1787, 1788, 1789 and 1790.

It is believed that after 1790 Henry moved to Kentucky, settling on Pittman’s Creek of the Green River.

3/15/1791 – Henry Skaggs obtained 400 acres on Pittman’s Creek, Nelson County, KY. 

(Kentucky Land Grants)

HENRY SKAGGS WILL 
5 APRIL 1809 
GREEN COUNTY, KENTUCKY 
Will Book 1 pp. 56-57 

In the name of God Amen, I HENRY SKAGGS of the County of Green and state 
of Kentucky do make this my last Will and Testament in manner and form following (To wit) I leave all my Estate both real and personal to my beloved Wife to be enjoyed by her during her life, and after her death, the tract of Land wher on I now live I give to my Grand son JOHN SKAGGS  son of JAMES SKAGGS; my Negro man Bob I give to my son DAVID SKAGGS; my negro woman Lucy I give to SYLVIA ROARK; I give to my Daughter SARAH SKAGGS a negro girl Rachel; I give to my son JAMES SKAGGS the rest of my negroes, jinney, and all her Children except (Rachel) and her further 
increase should she have any during either my life time or the lifetime of my Wife. The ballance of my Estate is to be sold, and I give one Dollar to STEPHEN SKAGGS, the Ballance to be equally divided amongst my Children hereafter named, SOLOMON SKAGGS, LUCY STACY, RACHEL RAY, NANCY D SPANE, POLLY COMBS what I have here left to each of my Children is in addition to what I have heretofore given Lastly I do appoint my son JAMES SKAGGS and ELIAS BARBEE Executors to this my last Will Revoking all others heretofore made by me. In testamony where of I here unto set my hand and seal this fifth day of April in the year of our Lord 1809. 

HENRY SKAGGS (mark) (seal) 
Signed, sealed and puplished in the presence of 

ELIAS BARBEE x 
JOHN BARBEE x 
LARKIN DURRET x 
JAMES RAFITY x 
WILLIAM BARBEE x 

At a County Court held for Green County on the 4th Monday in december1810. 
This will was produced into Court and proven by the oath off LARKIN DURRET, JAMES RAFFIRTY and JOHN BARBEE and ordered to be recorded which is done accordingly by 
Clerk JOHN BARRET DC
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Henry's will was contested in Green Co. KY Circuit Court Case #5389,  in June 1815 by his daughters  Nancy Despain and her husband Peter, Sylvia Roark and her husband Reuben, Mary Combs and her husband William, and Rachel Ray and her husband Thomas  against Elias Barbee and James Skaggs, executors of the will; Mary Skaggs, widow of Henry Skaggs; and David Skaggs, Solomon Skaggs, Stephen Skaggs, Lucy Stacy and her husband John, Sally Skaggs, children of Henry Skaggs; and John Skaggs, son of James Skaggs and grandson of Henry Skaggs. 
It stated that     "Henry Skaggs departed this life leaving your orators (the plaintiffs) heirs to part of his estate and that the deceased intended by a will to have devised his estate in such a manner as it might be well understood and for that purpose appointed Elias Barbee and James Skaggs in said will to be his Executors and to act for the benefit of all the legatees named in said will, but said will either being so uninteligible as that said Executor could not act properly on said will or otherwise they have so mistaken said will so as to do great injustice to your orators and have acted contrary to the last will and wish of the testator and your orators veryly believes that the will is so vague and uncertin that it cannot be acted upon so as to do justice to the parties according to the true intent and meaning of the testator which will and the inventory and appraisement of said estate your orators prays may be taken and read as a part of this bill and that the said executors Elias Barbee and James Skaggs may be made defendants to this bill and that your honors may by a decree of your honorable court make nul and void said will or otherwise if your honors should be of opinion that the said will can be understood so as to be acted upon your orators prays your honors to compell the said defendants to do justice according to the true intent and meaning of the deceased and compell the different legatees to act according to the justice of the case, to wit, David Skaggs, Solomon Skaggs, Stephen Skaggs, John Stacy and Lucy Stacy his wife all of whom your orators prays may be made defendants to this bill and your orators farther states that Mary Skaggs the wife of the deceased was left in possession of all the estate real and personal and has so wasted the estate for want of proper care and through neglect so as to deprive your orators from the benefit of their part of the estate when the said Mary Skaggs who is also made defendant hereunto was left in full possession of one tract of land the rents of which would have more than doubly supported her and also one valuable negro fellow named Bob whose labour alone with good management would have supported her and one other negro man named Ned whose labour was entirely sufficient to have supported her and your orators farther states that the deceased was none indebted and left several other negroes sufficient to support her and her daughter Sally Skaggs who is also made defendant hereunto all of which land and negores are now and have been in the possession and in the use of said defendant Mary Skaggs and if the will is not revoked the land to remain hers during her life and then to descend to John Skaggs son of James Skaggs which John Skaggs is also made defendant hereunto. And your orators would farther state that if the will is not made nul and void that they were and are entitled to a large share of the property of the deceased as ill appear from the will and inventory and the right of the increase of one negro woman which at present is three negroes all of which goods have been sold at public sale and otherwise made way with except the three negroes mentioned as the increase and they have in no accounted to your orators for any part of the estate when it was the wish and desire of the testator that the said defendant Mary his wife should be freely and honourably supported and that proper care should be taken by the executors and the defendant Mary and that after her suppoet the balance should be for your orators and that nothing should go to waste, but your orators state that there is a total neglect and in the defendant Mary Skaggs want of care which is much to the damages of your orators. All which actings and doings are contrary to equity and good conscience and tend greatly to injure your orators in tender consideration whereof and as your orators are with out remedy at common law and only relievable at equity before your honors where frauds are detected and hardships relieved against may it please your honors the premis considered to grant the Commonwealths writ of subpoena ad responendum by which the defendants may be compelled on their corpal oaths true and perfect answers to make it all and singular the premises as perfectly and as fully as if they were again repeated and interogated and that the Honourable Court may appoint commissioners to 
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adjust and settle the said estate and that by a final decree of the Honourable Court they may make nul and void the said will as being too vague to be understood so as to do justice or otherwise decree to your orators such part of the estate as to them does justly belong and grant an injunction all waste of said estate in further granting to the defendant Mary Skaggs the wife of the deceased a full and honourable support out of the estate and such other and farther relief as to equity doth belong and your orators as in duty bound shall ever pray. (Signed) John Emerson, Attorney for Complainants"
3.
Richard
b. 1727; d. 1818

m. Elizabeth (Wells ??)


1.
John          b. 1765

m.



2.
Rhoda       b. 1775

m.  ?Logsdon & John Phelps?


3.
Abednego  b. c 1769                  
m. Catherine Hoback 
8/11/1793


4.
Sarah
     b. 1771

m. Andrew Clements    6/18/1793



5.
Henry        b.  1759?

m. Sally Laisfield          5/20/1797



6.
Elizabeth   b.


m. Andrew B. Kelly        1817



7.
Lyddy        b. 1769

m. (1) Henry Skaggs    4/2/1812







     (2) Nathan Warren   1/28/1833?


above named in his will



8.
James       b. 1770; d. 1811(MO.)  m. Fanny Bealer
2/1808



9.
Shadrack   b.


   m. Lydia Gum             9/20/1791



10.
Mishack     b.
                             m. Sarah Gum            3/10/1789




Note:  Shadrack & Mishack were both dead by 1795 (before 





will was written.  – Mishack was killed by Indians in





Monroe County, Kentucky.



11.
Benjamin   b. 1764


m.  Sarah ?
Richard brought charges in Green County, KY court against his daughter Sarah “Sally”, for having a “base-born” child (out of wedlock).  Sarah had a son, William Warnell by John Warnell, but never married him.
She was to appear in court to answer the charges brought by her father on 6/19/1793, but the day before the court appearance, she married Andrew Clements and the charges were dropped.   William Warnell, was raised by Richard and signed for him when he married Rebecca Skaggs.
Recorded in Green County, KY court records, dated May 13, 1817, is the following:  “There is a marriage contract taken place between my grandson, William Warnel and Rebecca Skaggs, you are at liberty to grant him a license.  I have raised him, and there is no other person that has a right to object. Signed – Richard Skaggs.”

NOTE:
One source has this Rebecca Skaggs as the daughter of John Skaggs, but it clearly states in the Moses Skaggs’ papers (John’s  & Richard’s 
brother) that “John Skaggs …… and one other daughter named Rebecca Skaggs who remained unmarried”.  These papers were filed in 1836.



Note from Bishop group – it is stated by a Skaggs researcher that a 

Charles Skaggs signed the marriage bond; but they say definitely 

that this isn’t John Skaggs’ daughter.
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In the name of God Amen, I Richard Skaggs of Barren County knowing myself to be mortal and subject to death do make this my last will and testament, in manner and form following to wit: 1st, I lend to my beloved wife, Elizabeth, for her support during her natural life the land or plantation I live on containing one hundred and fourteen acres which I give and bequeath to my son John Skaggs,to him and his heirs. Item 2, My Muly cow and my white back cow and thier calves if any living of them a our decesase is to be divided amongst all my children, but any stock over and above what will support us out of the old stock is to be my son John's own property. Item 3, All my household and kitchen furniture at my wife Elizabeth's decease, my will and desire that it should be equally divided amongst all my children Viz: Rhoda Phelps, Abednego Skaggs, Sarah Clemmons, Henry Skaggs, John Skaggs, Elizabeth Skelly, and Lyddy Skaggs.
Item 4, I constitute and appoint my son Henry Skaggs and Jacob Smith my executors of this my last will and testament revoking all other wills or testaments by me hereafter made and do declare this to be my last will and testament.
Given under my hand and seal this 10th day of December 1818 . (Signed) Richard Skaggs. 
Signed sealed and acknowledged to be the last will and testament of said Richard Skaggs in presence of Jacob Smith, Henry Simpson, Jacob Lemmon. Barren County, May County Court, 1821."
Source: Barren Co Will Book 2, page 256.
NOTE:  Need more research on Richard Skaggs
4.
James, Jr.
b. 1728; d. 


     m. (1) Susanna; m. (2) Mary;   








     (3) Leah Carter?



NOTE:  Are these all his wives????? – 



1.
Rachel     b. 1770

     m. Moses Etherton
 5/18/1789



2.
Jeremiah  b. 1771

     m. Rebecca Mayse
12/14/1792



3.
William
    b. 1760

     m. (1) Mary Simpson  1778








     m. (2) Polly Pierce
  9/2/1802



4.
Henry
    b.


     m.  Manny



5.
James       b.


     m.  Nancy Mayse



6.
Stephen    b.


     m.  Nancy Anderson
 9/3/1799


June 17, 1788 – In Russell County, Va. Court charges against James Skeggs for leaving




his wife and cohabitating with Leah Carter.  (Note:  Wife’s name not 




mentioned)


The following appeared in “The Kentucky Gazette”

9 Sep,1793
Meshech CARTER, Nelson Co, notice he will petition the Assembly  for a divorce from his wife Leah.]

 Vol. 8,#35     Oct,1793 
Mechach CARTER gives public notice that 6 yrs & 4 mos. ago his wife, Leah eloped with James SKAGGS, & they are now back in Nelson Co.
document recorded in Nelson Co. Deed Bk. 4, pg. 882-883 :

I do hearby certify that I do forever quit all claim of my wright & title to Masheck CARTER 
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as husband & forever quit all claim to any wright or title of any part of Sd. CARTER estate either real or personal. Given under my hand this 23rd day of Nov,1793 
Leah [her X mark] CARTER 

Wit: Atkinson HILL 
James CRAVEN.
At the court heald for Nelson Co. on tuesday the 10th of Dec,1793 the within instrument of writing was proved by Atkinson HILL one of the subscribing witnesses & ordered to record we the under named subscribers mutually chosen by Masheck CARTER & Leah his wife that formerly was to settle & determine the dispute that subsisted between them by reason of her elopment with James SKAGGS from sd. CARTER do give our opinion." 


"pg.883 in the following manner the parties being 1st sworn to abide by the award given
by us which is in the following manner, We award that sd. Leah is no more the wife of sd. CARTER nor to have any claim to any of his estate either real or personal only is given 
by bond bearing date with this interwement, given under our hands this 23rd day of Nov,1793. (signed) John CARNAHAN, John DAVIS, John CAMERON, James BROWN, Samuel McADAMS, Atkinson HILL. 

At the court held for Nelson Co on tuesday the 10th day of Dec,1793. This award was produced & ordered to be recorded. Teste Ben GRAYSON. 

 Deed Bk. 1, pg. 5
Know all men I, James SKAGGS, have bargained & sold unto Henry SKAGGS, Stephen SKAGGS & James SKAGGS all that tract of land situated on Brush Ck. in Green Co. containing 450acs. being the same tract or parcel of land that was granted by patent from the state of VA. to me, served the2nd day of July, 1784 which land I will forever defend from me & all manner of persons claiming under me unto them, their heirs or assigns forever for the sum of 100 pds. to me in hand paid the receipt is hereby acknowledged given under my hand & seal the 15th of Nov, 1793. (signed) James SKAGGS Wit: John EMERSON, Alexander VANCE. 
At the County Court held for Green Co the 14th day of Nov,1793, this indenture was acknowledged by said James SKAGGS to be his act & deed & ordered to be recorded. Teste: James ALLEN. 

NOTE:    Did James Skaggs leave the area after deeding his property to his sons?  Need to find death date and place of death for James Skaggs, Jr. How many wives did he have?
5.
Elizabeth
b. 1729; d.


     m. John Hankins


1.
Rachel



     m. Archibald Maloney



2.
Sally



     m. John Mitchell



3.
Rebecca


     m. John Howell



4.
Mary



     m. Joseph White



5.
Parthena


     m. Never Married



6.
Lucy



     m.  Never married



7.
Lydia



     m. Never married



8.
Joseph



     m. Nancy Mitchell



9.
Moses



     m. Martha Mitchell
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6.
Susannah
b. 1730; d. 10/9/1797

     m. Richard Whitt


1.  
Susannah


m. Henry Creswell



2.
Edmond


m.  Hannah Lester Skaggs



3.
Hezekiah


m.  Rachel  ??



4.
Richard



m.  Betsy Baxter 10/4/1797 Mtg.Cty,Va.



NOTE:  These above 4 were the only ones mentioned in the Moses Skaggs Papers.  Where the rest already dead by 1836?



5.
Abijah



m. Elizabeth Elswick 10/22/1792











Mtg. Cty, Va.



6.
Rachel



m.  Abraham Henderson



7.
Archibald


m.  Hannah Low    1/12/1786



8.
Elizabeth


m.  William Cassiday



9.
Ruth



m.  Jesse Whitt  8/10/1789 Mtg.Cty. Va.


           10.
Robert



m.  Peggy White

7.
Nancy
b. 1732; d.



    m. William Meredith


1.
James



m. 


2.
John



m.



3.
Daniel



m.



4.  
Mathias
(or Matthew)

m.



5.
William



m.


NOTE:  These above 5 named in the Moses Skaggs Papers – where there other




children?

8.
Moses
b. 1733; d. c. 1796


   m. Elizabeth  ?


NO CHILDREN

Note:  See Lawsuit



See Land Records for buying and selling.

9.
Lydia

b. 1736; d. 10/2/1814

m. Mathias Harman



1.
Adam



m.


2.
Henry



m.



3.
Mathias



m.



4.
Katy



m.  Robert Beavers



5.
Phebe



m.  Moses Beavers



6.
Louisa (Lovace)


m.  Thomas Christian



NOTE:  These above 6 were named in the Moses Skaggs Papers, except the 




daughters’ names were left blank and referred to as wife of ---

Page 8




# 6 Louisa (Lovace is how it’s spelled in the papers was deceased by 




1836 as stated in the papers.




Where there more children of Lydia & Mathias?

10.
Charles
b. 1737; d. by 1816

m. Lucy Thompson * 2/21/1742**


1.(a)
Archibald   b.**1/3/1759

            m. Barbara Lemons











8/14/1801


2.
Rachel      b.**8/31/1761

m. ?? Blevins


3.
Nancy       b.**4/22/1763; d.1840
m. Joseph Meredith











12/24/1812


4.
Frederick  b.**12/11/1764;d.1822
m. Ann ?



5.
Mary “Polly” b.**9/16/1767

m  Jesse Gray


6.(a)
Thomas      b.**12/16/1769; d.1852
m. (1) Nancy Vance











3/13/1792









     m. (2) Elizabeth Bishop











9/26/1848


7.
Sarah Sally  b.**12/27/1771
             m. Francis Robertson 









                      10/11/1806


8.
Moses
     b.**1/27/1774; d.1852
m. Elizabeth Lemons 











9/14/1821
NOTE: 
  
See land records

CHARLES SKAGGS WILL 
9 FEBRUARY 1815 
GREEN COUNTY, KENTUCKY 
Will Book 1 pp. 137-139 


In the Name of god amen, I CHARLES SKAGGS Citizen of Green County, Kentucky considering the Mortality of human Nature and that it was appointed for all men once to die and after committing my body to the ground and my soul to god who gave it, I make and constitute this 
instrument of writing whereunto my name is subscribed to be my last will and testament, revoking all others. In primis, all my debts of which there is but few, and none of Magnitude, are to be paid, and then whatever there remains I will and bequeath in the following manner that is to say 
first my wish and desire is that my beloved wife LUCY SKAGGS shall have the use and profit of my whole estate Real and personal during her Natural life except such parts as I shall hereafter mention, that is to say the part of the land and plantation whereon I now live, and whereon my son MOSES SKAGGS Now lives, on the South side of the branch for him to have the use 
and benefit of that previous to the decease of his Mother, and at her decease to have the hold of the land the reason of my doing this is because he paid a greater part of the price that we gave for the land, though the deed was made to me. And at the decease of my wife; my desire is to have the whole of the land. Item first I will and bequeath to my beloved son ARCHIBALD SKAGGS a negro girl called SuSanna. Item I will and bequeath to my beloved daughter RACHEL BLEVEN'S heirs one dollar. Item to my beloved daughter NANCY MEREDITH an equal part as I have before mentioned and shall hereafter mention. Item I will and bequeath, to my beloved son FREDERICK SKAGGS I will and bequeath to him his equal part, among the other Children except such parts as is before and hereafter shall be mentioned. Item to my beloved daughter POLLY GRAY I will and bequeath to her heirs one dollar. Item to my beloved daughter 
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SALLY ROBERTSON, I will and bequeath an equal part with the others except the parts before and hereafter will be mentioned. Item to my beloved son THOMAS SKAGGS I will and bequeath my Negro boy called Bob and an equal part with the other Children of the property before mentioned and my said son THOMAS SKAGGS I will to be the executor to my whole estate. Item to my beloved son MOSES SKAGGS I will bequeath my Negro man called Sepio and a 
rifle gun called Sepios gun together with a equal part of the property not mentioned. Item to 
TEMPY BELCHER, wife to BERRY BELCHER I will and bequeath to her a filly called the reggie muffin to be hers immediately after my death. Item to NATHAN BLEVIN I will and bequeath two [word crossed out] colts, one called Jolly and the other Tody. 

In witness of which I have hereunto set my hand this ninth day of February in the year of Christ one thousand eight hundred and fifteen. 

CHARLES SKAGGS 

Tetes 
JAMES AKIN 
CHARLES BLEVINS 
CHARETY HOWEL 
WM. G. OWENS 
ZACHERIAH NANCE 

At a County Court, held for Green County at the Courthouse in Greensburgh on the 22nd day of January 1816. The within will of CHARLES SKAGGS Dec'd was produced in Court and proven by the oath of WILLIAM G. OWENS, ZACHERIAH NANCE and NATHANIEL OWENS subscribing witnesses to said will, and that they believed him at the time of executing the same to be in his perfect mind and memory and the same was ordered to be recorded which is done accordingly. Given under my hand this 28th day of March 1816. 
JOHN BARRET, cfc
Also named in will Tempy Belcher (This is Sempy Temperence DeSpain married Berry Belcher 12/15/1791.  Sempy is the daughter of John Dispain).   Question: Why would she be listed in his will?    (Tempy is a sister to Peter DeSpain that married Nancy Skaggs, d/o Henry)

1 (a)
Archibald Skaggs  - will written 6/1/1832; probated 5/6/1833




Adair County, KY.




names in his will – wife Barbara




1.
Charles

m. Rebecca Hamilton – 1814




2.
Archibald
m. (1) Jane Simpson 







     (2) Jane Logan




3.
Thomas
m. Patience Richeson




4.
Rachel

m. ? Blevins (Charles?)




5.
Malinda

m. William McDaniel       3/15/1830



also named in will:  Lewis Tomlin grandson





Daniel Heiston; Eliza Haston



Other children (not named in will):
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6.
Nancy “Viney”
  
m. William Pemberton    2/10/1800



7.
Sarah


m. Issac Johnston    12/9/1806




8.
Chloe


m. Daniel Haston     10/21/1807




9.
Anny


m. John Johnston     9/15/1815




10.
Jane


m. James Flournoy   3/22/1820




11.
Lucy


m. John Harrison
     1802




12.
Dicy


m. Joseph Tomlin
      1810




13.
Elizabeth
 
m.    ?




Note: Received a pension starting in 1832 – 1835 KY





Pension Rolls states “dead by 1834”.
REVOLUTIONARY WAR PENSION PAPERS
ARCHIBALD SKAGGS * ADAIR CO., KY
#31367
State of Kentucky Adair County and Circuit SCT.

On this 7th day of September 1832 personally appeared before me Daniel Trahue one of the Commonwealths justices of the peace and one of the justices of the county court of said county being a court of record Archibald Skaggs a resident of Adair County, Kentucky aged seventy two years last January who being first sworn according to law doth on his own oath make the following declaration in order to obtain the benefit of the act of Congress passed June 7th 1832.

He states that he was born on the 1st of January in the year 1759 in _____County in South Carolina and my parents moved to Virginia in Hallifax County and then moved to little River near New River then Bototort County Va., and afterwards Montgomery
County and in or about the year 1779 I was ordered out in the militia to do a tower of duty by Col. Preston and John Taylor was our Captain we went down New river forty miles or upwards to Culbersons bottom fort to guard the fort against the indians I served at that fort one month and was discharged and I think got a written discharge but don't  remember what went with it & returned home and and a while after that I vollunteered to go a six months tower of duty called Mackintoshs Campain we was ordered out by Col. Preston Tomis (?) Thomson was our Captain Bailey was our Lieutenant we was
marched down New River through through Green briar Co. across Galley River and near the mouth of the Kenoway we was stopped we was now about three hundred miles from home we was then marched toward home & all but perished to death & on Galley
River we was discharged and if I got any written discharge I have lost it and awhile after
that time perhaps in the year 1780 I was ordered out again to go against the Toreys for 15 days and Daniel Trig was our Capt. We proformed said tower of duty we ketched between 50 & 100 torys & deserters Col. Preston compelled the whole of them to inlist or find a substitute to go into the united states army. I do further state that I was seven months & fifteen days in servis in the said Revolution war and expect to prove it by Henry Scaggs of Gracin County ______ I hereby relinquish every claim whatever to a pension or annuity except the present I do further state that I have never been on any pension list or rool of any state or agency. I further state I alwaise complyed with all & every
ingagement I under took in & for said services in said Revolution War. (signed) Archibald 
Skaggs
I Daniel Trahue one of the Justices of the peace for the county of Adair State of Kentucky and one of the justices of the county court for said county do certify that on the 7th day of September 1832 I went to the house of Archibald Skaggs in said county and at his 
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reqeust wrote his declaration and propounded to him the interrogations prescribed by the war department which I endeavored to embody in his declaration I do certify that having 
read to him the declaration he suscribed it in my presence and was sworn to its truth by me I further certify that he is & has for a long time been afflicted with the gravel and is confined to his house & generally to his bed and cannot from bodily infirmity attend the courts of his county held in Colombia at the distance of 7 miles. I further certify that I have known Archibald Skaggs for 37 years living where he now does that he has been reputed a man of the most worthy character and a soldier of the revolution in his neighborhood I do further certify that having examined Thomas ____nry Skaggs of Grayson County spoken of in the foregoing declaration touching this service I do hereby declare that it is
my opinion after the investigation of the matter and after putting the interrogations prescribed by the war department that the above named applicant was a revolutionary soldier and served as he states and he further certifies that it appears to him that Henry Skaggs of Grayson County who proved his services is a credible person and that his statement is entitled to credit. Given under my hand as a justice of the Adair County
Court. (signed) Daniel Trahue JPAC
 I William Caldwell clerk of the Adair County Court do certify that Daniel Trahue whose name is annexed to the foregoing certificate is and was at the time of signing the same & at the time of the examination of the applicant a justice of the county court and full faith and credit is entitled to be attached to his official act and that the signature of
said D. Trahue hereto annexed is his genuine signature. In witness whereof I have hereunto set my hand and seal of office this 8th day of Sept. 1832 & 41st year of
the Commonwealth of Kentucky
(signed) WM. Caldwell, CACC
 Henry Skaggs of Grayson County aged seventy-three years makes oath that ever since he remembers anything he remembers his cousin Archibald Skaggs who has applied for a pension they have been acquainted throughout their lives in the New river country in what is now Montgomery County Virginia they were raised from childhood at about the age of 20 years Colo. Preston called for troops to guard the frontier on New River and he
& Archibald both were enrolled he does not recollect whether it was their tour according to the division numbers they had drawn or whether they volunteered they both however served on their own account & not as substitutes he states that they were commanded by Capt. John Taylor of the same county perhaps then Bottetourt they marched down New River about forty miles to a fort erected in Culbersons bottom called Culbersons bottom fort therethey remained one month guarding the frontier they were then relieved by another guard they were discharged by Capt. Taylor but whether verbally or in writing he does not recollect during all all this time Archibald was his messmate & he states that he knows well that Archibald served one month on this tour he states they returned home & after some time there was a call for men to go against the Indians on the Ohio at the mouth of the Great Kenhawa by Colo. Preston & Archibald & himself again volunteered their Captain was James Thompson he does not recollect the names of his Liut. &
ensign their rendezvous was held at old Wm. Thompsons in Montgomery County vis---- from thence they marched down New river and to the levels of Green briar and from there thence down New River crossing Ganly mountains & river and in a direction to
Point pleasant at the mouth of the Kenhawa & when they had reached within three miles of the last named place they were met by an express from Colo. McIntosh directing them to return as winter had set in & the Indians dispersed & their services not wanted they marched back on the same rout being now wholly without provisions & suffering greatly 
with cold & hunger and on the bank of of Ganley River they were discharged by Capt.Thompson but whether in writing or not he does not know he reached home in the dead of winter he cannot recollect the length of time they were gone he remembers they were credited for a 6 months tour during this time Archibald & himself were messmates & he knows well that he performed this tour he cannot recollect the year in which this
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campain was made in the year 1780 as he thinks a call was made to pursue & take Tories & deserters in their own county Colo. Preston having discovered that one Cox of 
____CountyVirginia was raising a troop of tories ordered him to be taken & found with him a list of Tories who were to embody themselves under Cox & march to N Carolina and join the British Colo Preston then called for troops to assist in taking those tories &
Michael Bonie? & having seized ____Tories in that neighborhood & then tried them by Court Martial and thence to Samuel Peppers on the bank of New River & there took & tried many more from thence they crossed New River & held another court martial at Stephel Catrans Reedy Creek & thence up the same creek to Jacob Catrans & tried
others they took from 50 to 100 tories & compelled them to swear allegiance to Virginia State & enlist in the regular army by themselves or subtitute during the war on this service they spent 15 days & were discharged at Jacob Catrans but does not recollect whether in writing or verbally they were messmates on this campain & he has a full knowledge of the services of Archibald during the time above spoken of that Archibald moved from the New river country upwards of forty years ago & shortly after afterwards he moved he has known Archibald ever since being upwards of forty years in the
neighborhood where he now lives in Kentucky. Henry (X, his mark) Skaggs State of Kentucky Adair County SCC 
I Daniel Trahue a justice of the peace in and for the county of A certify that on
the 7th day of 18 Henry Skaggs subscribed and was duly sworn to the above deposition and I believe he is the age he states & I further state that said Henry Skaggs is a credible person & his statement is entitled to credit given under my hand the day & year afa. State of Kentucky Adair County & Circuit SS On this 8th day of September 1832 was
produced in open court in the circuit court of Adair County being a court of record the statement of Archibald Skaggs resident in Adair County and the same being read together with the certificate of D. Trahue Esqr. a justice of the peace and of the county court and Henry Skaggs of Grayson County appeared in open court and subscribed and was sworn to his affidavit and was examined on oath by said court and proof being
made of the credibility of said Henry Skaggs the court do hereby declare their opinion after the investigation of the matter and the examination of the witnesses that the above named applicant was a Revolutionary soldier & served as he states and that Henry
Skaggs who signed the affidavit proving the services is a resident of Grayson County and is a credible person and is entitled to credit. I William Caldwell Clerk of the Adair Circuit Court do hereby that the foregoing contains the original proceedings of the said court in the matter of the application of Archibald Skaggs for a  pension. In testimony whereof I have hereunto set my hand and seal of office this 8th day of September 1832 & 41st years of the Commonwealth of Kentucky.
(signed) Wm. Caldwell. State
of Kentucky Adair county JCT 
On this third day of Decemeber 1833 personally appeared in open court before the worshipful county court of Adair County state of Kentucky now sitting Barbara
Skaggs a resident citizen of the county of Adair aforesaid and state of Kentucky aged 60 years who being first duly sworn deposeth and saith that she is the widow of Archibald Skaggs deceased who departed this life in the county aforesaid on the Twenty
first day of April 1833 and who made his declaration for a pension under act of congress passed June 7th 1832 before Daniel Trahue Esquire a Justice of the peace in and for the 
county afa on the 7th day of Sept. 1832 to which declaration she offers this as an amendment she states that she verily believes that her said Husband served as a private soldier in the army of the revolution as he has stated in his declaration she has often heard him speak of his services long before he made his declaration she states that she does not know of any witnesses who can prove the service of her deceased husband 
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other than the Evidence already taken and hereto annexed she further states that at the time her said husband made his declaration there was no clergyman residing in
the vicinity of her said husband and that he had for a long time been laboring under a 
severe malady of which he since died. In answer to the several interrogatories prescribed by the war department she states she cannot respond not having sufficient information upon that subject but would presume her said husband from the country in which he
served was not with regular troops or militia regiments other than those stated in his declaration in answer to the 7th interrogatory she states that her said husband was acquainted with Colo. Daniel Trahue who has certified for him and many others who would have certified as to his his goodcharacter subscribed and sworn to before and in open court the day and year aforesaid. Barbara (X her mark) Skaggs 
We William Caldwell & Thomas Gilmore Esq. residing in the county of Adair came into court and made oath that they are well acquainted with Barbara Skaggs that she is the
widow of Archibald Skaggs dec'd. formerly of the county aforesaid and tha she is a
reputable person and that her statements is entitled to credit that they believe she is the age she states subscribed and sworn to in open court.
(signed) Thomas Gilmore (signed) Wm. Caldwell and the court
certify that William Caldwell & Thomas Gilmore Esq. who has signed the preceeding certificate & affidavit are residents of Adair County and are credible persons and their statements are entitled to credit. State of Kentucky Adair County SCT
 I William Caldwell Clerk of the County Court for the County aforesaid certify that the foregoing amended declaration of Barbara Skaggs was made in open court and I further
certify that William Caldwell & Thomas Gilmore Esq. was duly sworn in open Court and signed the above certificate. In testimony whereof I have hereunto set
my hand and affixed the seal of the said court this 15th day of May 1834. (signed) Wm. Caldwell. 
Columbia, Ky., May 15th, 1834.

Dear,
 I enclose you the original declaration of Archibald Skaggs Dec'd. together with the
amendment made by his widow. I mislaid it and this is my apology for not sending it on sooner.
Whether her answer to the interrogatories required by the War department will be satisfactory you are the judge so it is she can say no more than she has said;
being ignorant of the facts, I can only say Wm (?) Skaggs was Highly reputable & his services never was doubted, & if the allowance can constantly be made you will please do so & communicate to me as soon as convenient.
I am deep with respect & esteem
your most obt svt
(signed) Wm. Owens
In the name of God Amen.I Archibald SKAGGS, Senr. of Adair County & State of Kentucky being weak in body but of sound sense & do publish this my last will and Testament in the manner following. First it is my desire that my beloved Wife Barbara SKAGGS live on and occupy the farm where she now lives during her natural life also to possess all my estate both real & personal during her life time. I desire to be sold after my decease so much of my personal property as will pay my just debts, also my sons Charles and Archibald to occupy the land they now live on and my son Thomas to live with and take care of his mother as long as she lives & keep all my property together & after her death. I want the land to be Equally divided between my three sons (viz) Charles, Archibald, & Thomas SKAGGS, to be divided in such a manner as for each one to possess the same land he now Occupys, Thomas to have his part where his Mother lives including house, spring, orchard &c. I wish the negroes to remain in the possession of my wife duering her life time and at her death I want Sam to be liberated and Made free. I want Delph 
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and her increase to be given to my daughters Rachel & Malinda Equally Between the two & if one of them die without an heir the sd. Delph & increase is to be the property of the surviving one. To my son Thomas, my Daughters Rachel & Malinda, to Each one I give one bed & furniture, one cow & calf to Each. I give to my son Thomas one Bay horse called Bluster, also the Bluster filly. I give to my Daughter Rachel one gray mare. I give to my Daughter Melinda Comet's colt. Which property they are to receive now. To Lewis TOMLIN I give one sorrel colt which he is to have when he becomes twenty one years old. And after that, if he remains with his Grandmother, I wish him to have one bed & furniture and receive some part of the crop for his servises after the death of my wife. It is my desire for all my remaining property such as stock, farming tools, house hold furniture &c to be sold and the money Equally Divided among all my children. I also confirm the gift to Daniel HEISTON; Heir Eliza HASTON of one Dollar. It is my desire that after the death of my wife the negro boy named George shall be the property of my son Thomas to be possessed by him for him any use benefit in consequence of his paying ninety Dollars which I owe to Daniel HASTON heirs and all other just debts due from me. I appoint Thomas H. GAINES, my sons Charles & Thomas SKAGGS Executors to this my last will and Testament. In witness whereof I have this 1st day of June 1832 set my hand and seal.


Archibald SKAGGS  his X  mark Seal


Witness:Thomas H. GAINES, James A. RICHARDSON, Muitt HAMILTON
State of Kentucky & Adair County Sct.At a County Court began & held for the said County the Courthouse in Columbia on Monday the 6th day of May 1833.  This last will & Testament of Archibald SKAGGS dec'd. was produced in Court and proven in due form of law by the oaths of Meit HAMILTON & James A. RICHARDSON subscribeing witneses there to and ordered to be recorded and, on the motion of Charles SKAGGS & Thomas SKAGGS two of the Executors therein named, the execution of the said will was granted them they having taken the oath required by law & executed & acknowledged bond in the final sum of two thousand Eight hundred

Dollars with Thomas H. GAINES & William H TINSLEY their securities conditioned as the law directs.


Test Wm.CALDWELL, C.A.C.C.
6(a)
Thomas Thompson – will written 9/31/1851; probated 




10/18/1852 Green County, KY




named in his will:  second wife Elizabeth




1.
Nancy Carolina Skaggs




2.
Alexander Skaggs




3.
James Thomas Skaggs




4.
Mary Skaggs




5.
Rachel Jane Skaggs




6.
Susannah Francis Skaggs




grand children:





Thomas Jefferson Skaggs, son of Moses, dec’d.





James Flemon Skaggs





Charlotte Reynolds





Thomas Thompson son of daughter Jiminia Beggs





Nancy Caroline Skaggs





James William




great grandson: Thomas Buckhannon
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Note: Not all children mentioned in his will as they had pre-




deceased their father.


Note:  Cherokee Claim idenitifed his children as:




Alexander, Moses, Mary Polly, William, Gemima, Thomas J,




Elijah m. Elizabeth Crail 2/18/1835.

Note:  Cherokee Indian Claim Application of Thomas M. Skaggs, 8/20/1907.  
Thomas M. Skaggs stated he was born Nov. 19, 1835 in Green County, KY son 
of Elijah & Luceretia (Crail) Skaggs; his great-grandparents were Archibald & Betsy Thompson Skaggs. He said she was sometimes called “Lucy” and had died in her son Thomas Skaggs house in Green County at an advanced age about 1838/39.
 In Thomas Skaggs household in 1830 there was an elderly lady   Thomas Skaggs 1 m 15-20; 1 m. 50-60; 1 f. 60-70; 1 f. 90-100.    According to Archibald Thompson’s diary, Lucy Thompson Skaggs was born February 21, 1742, making her 88.
Great-grandparents would be for Thomas M. Skaggs:   Charles & Lucy Skaggs.

Thomas M. Skaggs grandparents would be: Thomas Thompson Skaggs & Nancy Vance;  Thomas M. Skaggs parents would be Elijah Skaggs & Elizabeth Luceretia Crail.


Needs some verifying.
Will Book 3, Page 176 Green County, Kentucky

I Thomas Skaggs of the County of Green and State of Kentucky, being old and infirm and 
not knowing the day of my death, as yet of sound mind and good memory wish to dispose of my little estate real and personal in the following manner.

In the name of God Amen I resign my body to the dust and my spirit to God who gave it.
Item: First that all my just debts be paid out of my estate
Item: I will to my wife Elizabeth Skaggs, a part of the tract of land and plantation on
which I now live, as part of her dower in my inheritance. Including my dwelling house and
kitchen, a part of the apple orchard and garden with some other lots which boundry is marked by trees and fencing, which the said Elizabeth is to have and hold her natural life. The said Elizabeth is not to rent or lease the land more than 1 year at a time.
Item: I also will the said Elizabeth one third part of all my household and kitchen
furniture and farming tools also 1/3 part of all my stock for the purpose of her maintenance.
Item: My negro slave named Timothy, now about 40 years of age, I will in the following
manner; the said Timothy to live on my plantation one year after my decease under the direction and controle and care of Nathan Gooch.
Item: I will to said Timothy one half of his time for his own benefit for the space of three
years, the other half to the benefit of Nathan Gooch for the trouble and expense that he may be at with my affiars and that the said Timothy is not to be hired more than 1 month at a time except to be from his own choice that he, the said Timothy is not to be hired nor 
sent on any errand out of the state of Kentucky. After the expiration of three years if
said Timothy wishes to leave the state for any other country, I will that he go out a 
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freeman by complying with the laws of the country.
If Timothy should chose to continue in the state of Kentucky, I will that he still have one half of his time and other half to the benefit of Nathan Gooch.
Item: I will to the orphan children of my son Thomas Thompson Skaggs dec'd – one hundred acres of land to the same more or less the tract of land on which I now live to be equally divided among the said children, the land willed to my wife at her death to be added or its value to each child as part, which land I by this will I entail to the following named children and their bodily heirs forever - Nancy Caroline Skaggs, Alexander Skaggs, James Thomas Skaggs, Mary Skaggs and Rachel Jane Skaggs and Susannah Francis Skaggs.
Item: I will that if any of the above named children decease without heirs that their part
of said land by equally divided among the surviving part of them.
Item: I will one half of my estate real and personal, not named in the will to a part of my
grand children and great grand children. To Wit: To Thomas Jefferson Skaggs son of Moses dec'd. James Flemon Skagggs, Charlotte Reynolds, Thomas Thompson son of
my daughter Jiminia Beggs, Nancy Caroline Skaggs and James William Thomas Buckhannon my great grandson and Anna Mathis. I will that if any of the above named children decease without heirs that their share of the above named property shall be divided between them, the survivng of them.
Item: I will that all the remainder of my estate to be equally divided between all my
natural heirs. By this my las will and testement and revoke all wills previously made by both written and verbal. This I make my last will and testement let no man disanul. I leave Nathan Gooch my executor. In testamony when of I set my and And affix my seal this 31st day of Sept. 1851, said Gooch is to execute 

without being bound to security.

Thomas Skaggs (X)

Attest:
Wm. McCubbins   Nathan T. McDonald     Silas (X) Grunslent
At a County Court for Green County at the Court House in Greensburg on the 18th day of Oct. 1852 the forgoing of written insterment purporting to be the last will of Thomas Skaggs dec'd -
Produced by Nathan Gooch, Executor.
11.
John

b. 1728; d. 1829


m. Elizabeth ???

From the Moses Skaggs’ Estate Papers we learn that this John Skaggs had the following children:

daughter -  Susannah Skaggs m. William Queary   11/2/1799 ; consent of father, John

“one other daughter   __?___ married to Thomas York, 
 one other daughter ___?___ married to Laban Ellis and one other daughter Rebecca Skaggs who remains unmarried”.  (1836)
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In 1835 William Quarey and wife Susannah were in Tazewell County, Va. for a deposition on the Moses Skaggs suit.

From Brenda on Bishop group:  she states that John Skaggs had a son Zachariah that married Nancy Wilcox in 1833 Barren County, KY..

Also per Brenda:  John Skaggs, brother to Moses – had a wife named Elizabeth.  This John Skaggs was wounded at the Battle of Kings Mountain and received a pension.  Also have abstracts of deeds as follows:

Deed Book 1 – Russell County, Va.

pages 76-77
5/22/1789 – between John Scaggs and Elizabeth and Moses Skaggs – 220 acres – granted to John Skeggs by patent dated June 24, 1785. Signed: John Scaggs & Elisabeth Scaggs.  No witness.

P. 178,179 & 180 – September 26, 1791 between John Scaggs &

Elizabeth and John Saddler – 100 acres according to a conditional line between the two parties…. on both sides of Sorral Creek of the Maiden Spring For of Clinch River, part of a larger tract of 320 acres granted to John Scaggs by patent dated June 24, 1785… Beginning corner to Charles Scaggs… Signed: John Scaggs & Elizabeth Scaggs. No witness.

Washington County, VA

At court held, ordered that Bennoni Benning and John Skaggs who received wounds at the battle of Kings Mountain…ought to be on the list of Pensioners. 15 Apr., 1783.
August 8, 1786 – Court ordered John Scaggs be exempted from paying taxes on account of bodily  infirmities.
Revolutionary Pension Order of John Skaggs:

Law Order Book 1, Page 168

Sep 15, 1789
Ordered that John Skaggs be allowed a pension of eight pounds, he being wouded at the battle of Kings Mountain so as to render him incapable of labouring for a sustenance and that the Clerk do certify the same to the Executive.


Law Order Book 2, Page 67


Pension – 1786 to 1792 of 8 pounds per yr.


Following entries found:

Skaggs, John – Soldier – Russell County; Green County, Kentucky, Barron

Surry County, VA – Military – John Skaggs, Revolutionary War Pension

Affidavit

Skaggs, John (Skeggs)
Pen. 385
1791-1809
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Soldier

Russell County – Green County, Kentucky –Barron County, Kentucky

I do with the advice of Council hereby certify that John Skaggs late a private in the Virginia State Line and was disabled in the service of the Commonwealth is put on the pension list with an allowance of eight pounds yearly; which allowance is accordingly made him to commence from the fifteenth day of December 1791. 
Given under my hand as Governor of the Commonwealth of Virginia, at Richmond, this 11th day of October 1792.

T. Meriwether

Signed:  Henry Lee

County, Kentucky


Children of John ??:


1.
Susannah


m. William Queary
11/2/1799


2.
Charles



m. Polly Wilcox ?      
12/15/1821


3.
Zachariah


m. Nancy Wilcox
1/28/1822


4.
Rebecca


5.
?



m. Thomas York


6.
?



m. Laban Ellis


7.
John ?



m.


Other children?   To be verified, if possible.
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Miscellaneous Notes:

. "Kentucky Skaggs" Unpublished mss.,
onionskin, n.d., n.p., twelve of an unknown number of pages.
Source: Family record collection of a Thompson-Skaggs descendant,
who found the manuscript in the Fort Wayne, IN, library several
years ago, and copied these twelve pages.
INTRODUCTION

This book pertains to the Skaggs family - references to this surname that we have found from Kentucky data we have researched. It is our hope that with the aid of this book, your research on
the Skaggs family will progress more rapidly. Also, we have tried to list where we have obtained our information. In this way, you will not have to check the same sources we have already checked. Many references can be found on the Long Hunters in almost any history book on early Kentuckiana. Numbered among the Long Hunters you will find, prominently mentioned, Henry and James Skaggs, and sometimes Richard and Charles. These four were brothers, and according to information we have they had two other brothers - Moses and John. The Draper Manuscripts state that these six brothers were grandsons of an Irishman who fled Ireland shortly after the seige of Londonderry ca. 1688-89 and came to America. This Skaggs man came first to Maryland, and then his family migrated into Virginia. However, from the book CAVALIERS AND PIONEERS BY Nell H. Nugent, we find reference, on page 387, to a Richard Skags who came to America ca. 1658. This is some thirty years earlier than the Draper manuscripts place the family in this country. Then, in the book referred to as HANSON'S OLD KENT MARYLAND, listed in the addenda section at the end of the book, we find where one Richard Skegs was chosen church
warden of the Shrewsbury Parish 18 April 1715. Still later, from the book EMIGRANTS IN BONDAGE by Marion and Jack Kaminkow we find where one Elizabeth Skaggs, wife of Richard, came to Virginia from Newgate in 1730 aboard the ship Forward Galley captained by George Buckeridge. In this same book, we find a William and a George Skegg who came from Hertford to Maryland on the ship Mediterranean in 1741. Yet, even with these latter entries to the United States, we feel that the Kentucky Skaggs were descended from the six brothers previously
mentioned. We have not, as yet, discovered wives for these brothers, but each one of them had a
fairly large family. Henry, James, Charles and Richard moved their families into Kentucky. One reference we have, THE LONG HUNTERS OF SKIN HOUSE BRANCH by Ruth Burdette and Nancy M. Berley, states that Moses Skaggs was killed by Indians on his second trip into
Kentucky. 
Another book, THE DESCENDANTS OF THOMAS SKAGGS by Earl N. Skaggs states that John Skaggs remained in Virginia with his family, with the exception of two of his sons, Levi and Thomas, who removed to Kentucky. 
NOTE:  THIS JOHN SKAGGS IS THE ONE IN WEST VIRGINIA THAT MARRIED CATHERINE HICKS.  THIS JOHN SKAGGS IS NOT A BROTHER TO HENRY,CHARLES,MOSES,JOHN, ETC.  THIS JOHN SKAGGS IS A SON OF THOMAS SKAGGS OF WOLF CREEK
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